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days before such cancellation is in-
tended to be effective (see section 
422(a) of part C of title IV of the Act). 

§ 726.213 Reports by carriers con-
cerning the payment of benefits. 

Pursuant to 33 U.S.C. 914(c) as incor-
porated by section 422(a) of part C of 
title IV of the Act and § 726.207 each 
carrier issuing a policy or contract of 
insurance under the Act shall upon 
making the first payment of benefits 
and upon the suspension of any pay-
ment in any case, immediately notify 
the Office in accordance with a form 
prescribed by the Office that payment 
of benefit has begun or has been sus-
pended as the case may be. In addition, 
each such carrier shall at the request 
of the Office submit to the Office such 
additional information concerning 
policies or contracts of insurance 
issued to guarantee the payment of 
benefits under the Act and any benefits 
paid thereunder, as the Office may 
from time to time require to carry out 
its responsibilities under the Act. 

Subpart D—Civil Money Penalties 
§ 726.300 Purpose and scope. 

Any operator which is required to se-
cure the payment of benefits under sec-
tion 423 of the Act and § 726.4 and which 
fails to secure such benefits, shall be 
subject to a civil penalty of not more 
than $1,000 for each day during which 
such failure occurs. If the operator is a 
corporation, the president, secretary, 
and treasurer of the operator shall also 
be severally liable for the penalty 
based on the operator’s failure to se-
cure the payment of benefits. This sub-
part defines those terms necessary for 
administration of the civil money pen-
alty provisions, describes the criteria 
for determining the amount of penalty 
to be assessed, and sets forth applicable 
procedures for the assessment and con-
test of penalties. 

§ 726.301 Definitions. 
In addition to the definitions pro-

vided in part 725 of this subchapter and 
§ 726.8, the following definitions apply 
to this subpart: 

(a) Division Director means the Direc-
tor, Division of Coal Mine Workers’ 
Compensation, Office of Workers’ Com-

pensation Programs, or such other offi-
cial authorized by the Division Direc-
tor to perform any of the functions of 
the Division Director under this sub-
part. 

(b) President, secretary, or treasurer 
means the officers of a corporation as 
designated pursuant to the laws and 
regulations of the state in which the 
corporation is incorporated or, if that 
state does not require the designation 
of such officers, the employees of a 
company who are performing the work 
usually performed by such officers in 
the state in which the corporation’s 
principal place of business is located. 

(c) Principal means any person who 
has an ownership interest in an oper-
ator that is not a corporation, and 
shall include, but is not limited to, 
partners, sole proprietors, and any 
other person who exercises control over 
the operation of a coal mine. 

[65 FR 80097, Dec. 20, 2000, as amended at 77 
FR 37287, June 21, 2012] 

§ 726.302 Determination of penalty. 
(a) The following method shall be 

used for determining the amount of 
any penalty assessed under this sub-
part. 

(b) The penalty shall be determined 
by multiplying the daily base penalty 
amount or amounts, determined in ac-
cordance with the formula set forth in 
this section, by the number of days in 
the period during which the operator is 
subject to the security requirements of 
section 423 of the Act and § 726.4, and 
fails to secure its obligations under the 
Act. The period during which an oper-
ator is subject to liability for a penalty 
for failure to secure its obligations 
shall be deemed to commence on the 
first day on which the operator met the 
definition of the term ‘‘operator’’ as 
set forth in § 725.101 of this subchapter. 
The period shall be deemed to continue 
even where the operator has ceased 
coal mining and any related activity, 
unless the operator secured its liability 
for all previous periods through a pol-
icy or policies of insurance obtained in 
accordance with subpart C of this part 
or has obtained a certification of ex-
emption in accordance with the provi-
sions of § 726.114. 

(c)(1) A daily base penalty amount 
shall be determined for all periods up 
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to and including the 10th day after the 
operator’s receipt of the notification 
sent by the Director pursuant to 
§ 726.303, during which the operator 
failed to secure its obligations under 
section 423 of the Act and § 726.4. 

(2)(i) The daily base penalty amount 
shall be determined based on the num-
ber of persons employed in coal mine 
employment by the operator, or en-
gaged in coal mine employment on be-
half of the operator, on each day of the 
period defined by this section, and 
shall be computed as follows: 

Employees Penalty 
(per day) 

Less than 25 ...................................................... $100 
25–50 ................................................................. 200 
51–100 ............................................................... 300 
More than 100 ................................................... 400 

(ii) For any period after the operator 
has ceased coal mining and any related 
activity, the daily penalty amount 
shall be computed based on the largest 
number of persons employed in coal 
mine employment by the operator, or 
engaged in coal mine employment on 
behalf of the operator, on any day 
while the operator was engaged in coal 
mining or any related activity. For 
purposes of this section, it shall be pre-
sumed, in the absence of evidence to 
the contrary, that any person em-
ployed by an operator is employed in 
coal mine employment. 

(3) In any case in which the operator 
had prior notice of the applicability of 
the Black Lung Benefits Act to its op-
erations, the daily base penalty 
amounts set forth in paragraph (c)(2)(i) 
of this section shall be doubled. Prior 
notice may be inferred where the oper-
ator, or an entity in which the operator 
or any of its principals had an owner-
ship interest, or an entity in which the 
operator’s president, secretary, or 
treasurer were employed: 

(i) Previously complied with section 
423 of the Act and § 726.4; 

(ii) Was notified of its obligation to 
comply with section 423 of the Act and 
§ 726.4; or 

(iii) Was notified of its potential li-
ability for a claim filed under the 
Black Lung Benefits Act pursuant to 
§ 725.407 of this subchapter. 

(4) Commencing with the 11th day 
after the operator’s receipt of the noti-

fication sent by the Director pursuant 
to § 726.303, the daily base penalty 
amounts set forth in paragraph (c)(2)(i) 
shall be increased by $100. 

(5) In any case in which the operator, 
or any of its principals, or an entity in 
which the operator’s president, sec-
retary, or treasurer were employed, has 
been the subject of a previous penalty 
assessment under this part, the daily 
base penalty amounts shall be in-
creased by $300, up to a maximum daily 
base penalty amount of $1,000. The 
maximum daily base penalty amount 
applicable to any violation of § 726.4 
that takes place after January 19, 2001 
shall be $1,100. 

(d) The penalty shall be subject to re-
duction for any period during which 
the operator had a reasonable belief 
that it was not required to comply 
with section 423 of the Act and § 726.4 or 
a reasonable belief that it had obtained 
insurance coverage to comply with sec-
tion 423 of the Act and § 726.4. A notice 
of contest filed in accordance with 
§ 726.307 shall not be sufficient to estab-
lish a reasonable belief that the oper-
ator was not required to comply with 
the Act and regulations. 

§ 726.303 Notification; investigation. 
(a) If the Director determines that an 

operator has violated the provisions of 
section 423 of the Act and § 726.4, he or 
she shall notify the operator of its vio-
lation and request that the operator 
immediately secure the payment of 
benefits. Such notice shall be sent by 
certified mail. 

(b) The Director shall also direct the 
operator to supply information rel-
evant to the assessment of a penalty. 
Such information, which shall be sup-
plied within 30 days of the Director’s 
request, may include: 

(1) The date on which the operator 
commenced its operation of a coal 
mine; 

(2) The number of persons employed 
by the operator since it began oper-
ating a coal mine and the dates of their 
employment; and 

(3) The identity and last known ad-
dress: 

(i) In the case of a corporation, of all 
persons who served as president, sec-
retary, and treasurer of the operator 
since it began operating a coal mine; or 
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(ii) In the case of an operator which 
is not incorporated, of all persons who 
were principals of the operator since it 
began operating a coal mine; 

(c) In conducting any investigation of 
an operator under this subpart, the Di-
vision Director shall have all of the 
powers of a district director, as set 
forth at § 725.351(a) of this subchapter. 
For purposes of § 725.351(c), the Division 
Director shall be considered to sit in 
the District of Columbia. 

§ 726.304 Notice of initial assessment. 

(a) After an operator receives notifi-
cation under § 726.303 and fails to secure 
its obligations for the period defined in 
§ 726.302(b), and following the comple-
tion of any investigation, the Director 
may issue a notice of initial penalty 
assessment in accordance with the cri-
teria set forth in § 726.302. 

(b)(1) A copy of such notice shall be 
sent by certified mail to the operator. 
If the operator is a corporation, a copy 
shall also be sent by certified mail to 
each of the persons who served as presi-
dent, secretary, or treasurer of the op-
erator during any period in which the 
operator was in violation of section 423 
of the Act and § 726.4. 

(2) Where service by certified mail is 
not accepted by any person, the notice 
shall be deemed received by that per-
son on the date of attempted delivery. 
Where service is not accepted, the Di-
rector may exercise discretion to serve 
the notice by regular mail. 

§ 726.305 Contents of notice. 

The notice required by § 726.304 shall: 
(a) Identify the operator against 

whom the penalty is assessed, as well 
as the name of any other person sever-
ally liable for such penalty; 

(b) Set forth the determination of the 
Director as to the amount of the pen-
alty and the reason or reasons therefor; 

(c) Set forth the right of each person 
identified in paragraph (a) of this sec-
tion to contest the notice and request 
a hearing before the Office of Adminis-
trative Law Judges; 

(d) Set forth the method for each per-
son identified in paragraph (a) to con-
test the notice and request a hearing 
before the Office of Administrative 
Law Judges; and 

(e) Inform any affected person that in 
the absence of a timely contest and re-
quest for hearing received within 30 
days of the date of receipt of the no-
tice, the Director’s assessment will be-
come final and unappealable as to that 
person. 

§ 726.306 Finality of administrative as-
sessment. 

Except as provided in § 726.307(c), if 
any person identified as potentially 
liable for the assessment does not, 
within 30 days after receipt of notice, 
contest the assessment, the Director’s 
assessment shall be deemed final as to 
that person, and collection and recov-
ery of the penalty may be instituted 
pursuant to § 726.320. 

§ 726.307 Form of notice of contest and 
request for hearing. 

(a) Any person desiring to contest 
the Director’s notice of initial assess-
ment shall request an administrative 
hearing pursuant to this part. The no-
tice of contest shall be made in writing 
to the Director, Division of Coal Mine 
Workers’ Compensation, Office of 
Workers’ Compensation Programs, 
United States Department of Labor. 
The notice of contest must be received 
no later than 30 days after the date of 
receipt of the notice issued under 
§ 726.304. No additional time shall be 
added where service of the notice is 
made by mail. 

(b) The notice of contest shall: 
(1) Be dated; 
(2) Be typewritten or legibly written; 
(3) State the specific issues to be con-

tested. In particular, the person must 
indicate his agreement or disagree-
ment with: 

(i) The Director’s determination that 
the person against whom the penalty is 
assessed is an operator subject to the 
requirements of section 423 of the Act 
and § 726.4, or is the president, sec-
retary, or treasurer of an operator, if 
the operator is a corporation. 

(ii) The Director’s determination 
that the operator violated section 423 
of the Act and § 726.4 for the time pe-
riod in question; and 

(iii) The Director’s determination of 
the amount of penalty owed; 
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(4) Be signed by the person making 
the request or an authorized represent-
ative of such person; and 

(5) Include the address at which such 
person or authorized representative de-
sires to receive further communica-
tions relating thereto. 

(c) A notice of contest filed by the 
operator shall be deemed a notice of 
contest on behalf of all other persons 
to the Director’s determinations that 
the operator is subject to section 423 of 
the Act and § 726.4 and that the oper-
ator violated those provisions for the 
time period in question, and to the Di-
rector’s determination of the amount 
of penalty owed. An operator may not 
contest the Director’s determination 
that a person against whom the pen-
alty is assessed is the president, sec-
retary, or treasurer of the operator. 

(d) Failure to specifically identify an 
issue as contested pursuant to para-
graph (b)(3) of this section shall be 
deemed a waiver of the right to contest 
that issue. 

[65 FR 80097, Dec. 20, 2000, as amended at 77 
FR 37287, June 21, 2012] 

§ 726.308 Service and computation of 
time. 

(a) Service of documents under this 
part shall be made by delivery to the 
person, an officer of a corporation, or 
attorney of record, or by mailing the 
document to the last known address of 
the person, officer, or attorney. If serv-
ice is made by mail, it shall be consid-
ered complete upon mailing. Unless 
otherwise provided in this subpart, 
service need not be made by certified 
mail. If service is made by delivery, it 
shall be considered complete upon ac-
tual receipt by the person, officer, or 
attorney; upon leaving it at the per-
son’s, officer’s or attorney’s office with 
a clerk or person in charge; upon leav-
ing it at a conspicuous place in the of-
fice if no one is in charge; or by leaving 
it at the person’s or attorney’s resi-
dence. 

(b) If a complaint has been filed pur-
suant to § 726.309, two copies of all doc-
uments filed in any administrative pro-
ceeding under this subpart shall be 
served on the attorneys for the Depart-
ment of Labor. One copy shall be 
served on the Associate Solicitor, 
Black Lung Benefits Division, Room N– 

2117, Office of the Solicitor, U.S. De-
partment of Labor, 200 Constitution 
Ave., NW., Washington, DC 20210, and 
one copy on the attorney representing 
the Department in the proceeding. 

(c) The time allowed a party to file 
any response under this subpart shall 
be computed beginning with the day 
following the action requiring a re-
sponse, and shall include the last day 
of the period, unless it is a Saturday, 
Sunday, or federally-observed holiday, 
see § 725.311 of Part 725 of this sub-
chapter, in which case the time period 
shall include the next business day. 

§ 726.309 Referral to the Office of Ad-
ministrative Law Judges. 

(a) Upon receipt of a timely notice of 
contest filed in accordance with 
§ 726.307, the Director, by the Associate 
Solicitor for Black Lung Benefits or 
the Regional Solicitor for the Region 
in which the violation occurred, may 
file a complaint with the Office of Ad-
ministrative Law Judges. The Director 
may, in the complaint, reduce the total 
penalty amount requested. A copy of 
the notice of initial assessment issued 
by the Director and all notices of con-
test filed in accordance with § 726.307 
shall be attached. A notice of contest 
shall be given the effect of an answer 
to the complaint for purposes of the ad-
ministrative proceeding, subject to any 
amendment that may be permitted 
under this subpart and 29 CFR part 18. 

(b) A copy of the complaint and at-
tachments thereto shall be served by 
counsel for the Director on the person 
who filed the notice of contest. 

(c) The Director, by counsel, may 
withdraw a complaint filed under this 
section at any time prior to the date 
upon which the decision of the Depart-
ment becomes final by filing a motion 
with the Office of Administrative Law 
Judges or the Secretary, as appro-
priate. If the Director makes such a 
motion prior to the date on which an 
administrative law judge renders a de-
cision in accordance § 726.313, the dis-
missal shall be without prejudice to 
further assessment against the oper-
ator for the period in question. 
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§ 726.310 Appointment of Administra-
tive Law Judge and notification of 
hearing date. 

Upon receipt from the Director of a 
complaint filed pursuant to § 726.309, 
the Chief Administrative Law Judge 
shall appoint an Administrative Law 
Judge to hear the case. The Adminis-
trative Law Judge shall notify all in-
terested parties of the time and place 
of the hearing. 

§ 726.311 Evidence. 
(a) Except as specifically provided in 

this subpart, and to the extent they do 
not conflict with the provisions of this 
subpart, the Rules of Practice and Pro-
cedure for Administrative Hearings Be-
fore the Office of Administrative Law 
Judges established by the Secretary at 
29 CFR part 18 shall apply to adminis-
trative proceedings under this subpart. 

(b) Notwithstanding 29 CFR 
18.1101(b)(2), subpart B of the Rules of 
Practice and Procedure for Administra-
tive Hearings Before the Office of Ad-
ministrative Law Judges shall apply to 
administrative proceedings under this 
part, except that documents contained 
in Department of Labor files and of-
fered on behalf of the Director shall be 
admissible in proceedings under this 
subpart without regard to their compli-
ance with the Rules of Practice and 
Procedure. 

§ 726.312 Burdens of proof. 
(a) The Director shall bear the bur-

den of proving the existence of a viola-
tion, and the time period for which the 
violation occurred. To prove a viola-
tion, the Director must establish: 

(1) That the person against whom the 
penalty is assessed is an operator, or is 
the president, secretary, or treasurer of 
an operator, if such operator is a cor-
poration. 

(2) That the operator violated section 
423 of the Act and § 726.4. The filing of 
a complaint shall be considered prima 
facie evidence that the Director has 
searched the records maintained by 
OWCP and has determined that the op-
erator was not authorized to self-insure 
its liability under the Act for the time 
period in question, and that no insur-
ance carrier reported coverage of the 
operator for the time period in ques-
tion. 

(b) The Director need not produce 
further evidence in support of his bur-
den of proof with respect to the issues 
set forth in paragraph (a) if no party 
contested them pursuant to 
§ 726.307(b)(3). 

(c) The Director shall bear the bur-
den of proving the size of the operator 
as required by § 726.302, except that if 
the Director has requested the operator 
to supply information with respect to 
its size under § 726.303 and the operator 
has not fully complied with that re-
quest, it shall be presumed that the op-
erator has more than 100 employees en-
gaged in coal mine employment. The 
person or persons liable for the assess-
ment shall thereafter bear the burden 
of proving the actual number of em-
ployees engaged in coal mine employ-
ment. 

(d) The Director shall bear the bur-
den of proving the operator’s receipt of 
the notification required by § 726.303, 
the operator’s prior notice of the appli-
cability of the Black Lung Benefits Act 
to its operations, and the existence of 
any previous assessment against the 
operator, the operator’s principals, or 
the operator’s officers. 

(e) The person or persons liable for an 
assessment shall bear the burden of 
proving the applicability of the miti-
gating factors listed in § 726.302(d). 

§ 726.313 Decision and order of Admin-
istrative Law Judge. 

(a) The Administrative Law Judge 
shall render a decision on the issues re-
ferred by the Director. 

(b) The decision of the Administra-
tive Law Judge shall be limited to de-
termining, where such issues are prop-
erly before him or her: 

(1) Whether the operator has violated 
section 423 of the Act and § 726.4; 

(2) Whether other persons identified 
by the Director as potentially severally 
liable for the penalty were the presi-
dent, treasurer, or secretary of the cor-
poration during the time period in 
question; and 

(3) The appropriateness of the pen-
alty assessed by the Director in light of 
the factors set forth in § 726.302. The 
Administrative Law Judge shall not 
render determinations on the legality 
of a regulatory provision or the con-
stitutionality of a statutory provision. 
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(c) The decision of the Administra-
tive Law Judge shall include a state-
ment of findings and conclusions, with 
reasons and bases therefor, upon each 
material issue presented on the record. 
The decision shall also include an ap-
propriate order which may affirm, re-
verse, or modify, in whole or in part, 
the determination of the Director. 

(d) The Administrative Law Judge 
shall serve copies of the decision on 
each of the parties by certified mail. 

(e) The decision of the Administra-
tive Law Judge shall be deemed to have 
been issued on the date that it is ren-
dered, and shall constitute the final 
order of the Secretary unless there is a 
request for reconsideration by the Ad-
ministrative Law Judge pursuant to 
paragraph (f) of this section or a peti-
tion for review filed pursuant to 
§ 726.314. 

(f) Any party may request that the 
Administrative Law Judge reconsider 
his or her decision by filing a motion 
within 30 days of the date upon which 
the decision of the Administrative Law 
Judge is issued. A timely motion for 
reconsideration shall suspend the run-
ning of the time for any party to file a 
petition for review pursuant to 
§ 726.314. 

(g) Following issuance of the decision 
and order, the Chief Administrative 
Law Judge shall promptly forward the 
complete hearing record to the Direc-
tor. 

§ 726.314 Review by the Secretary. 
(a) The Director or any party ag-

grieved by a decision of the Adminis-
trative Law Judge may petition the 
Secretary for review of the decision by 
filing a petition within 30 days of the 
date on which the decision was issued. 
Any other party may file a cross-peti-
tion for review within 15 days of its re-
ceipt of a petition for review or within 
30 days of the date on which the deci-
sion was issued, whichever is later. 
Copies of any petition or cross-petition 
shall be served on all parties and on 
the Chief Administrative Law Judge. 

(b) A petition filed by one party shall 
not affect the finality of the decision 
with respect to other parties. 

(c) If any party files a timely motion 
for reconsideration, any petition for re-
view, whether filed prior to or subse-

quent to the filing of the timely mo-
tion for reconsideration, shall be dis-
missed without prejudice as premature. 
The 30-day time limit for filing a peti-
tion for review by any party shall com-
mence upon issuance of a decision on 
reconsideration. 

§ 726.315 Contents. 
Any petition or cross-petition for re-

view shall: 
(a) Be dated; 
(b) Be typewritten or legibly written; 
(c) State the specific reason or rea-

sons why the party petitioning for re-
view believes the Administrative Law 
Judge’s decision is in error; 

(d) Be signed by the party filing the 
petition or an authorized representa-
tive of such party; and 

(e) Attach copies of the Administra-
tive Law Judge’s decision and any 
other documents admitted into the 
record by the Administrative Law 
Judge which would assist the Secretary 
in determining whether review is war-
ranted. 

§ 726.316 Filing and service. 
(a) Filing. All documents submitted 

to the Secretary shall be filed with the 
Secretary of Labor, U.S. Department of 
Labor, 200 Constitution Ave., N.W., 
Washington, DC 20210. 

(b) Number of copies. An original and 
four copies of all documents shall be 
filed. 

(c) Computation of time for delivery by 
mail. Documents are not deemed filed 
with the Secretary until actually re-
ceived by the Secretary either on or be-
fore the due date. No additional time 
shall be added where service of a docu-
ment requiring action within a pre-
scribed time was made by mail. 

(d) Manner and proof of service. A copy 
of each document filed with the Sec-
retary shall be served upon all other 
parties involved in the proceeding. 
Service under this section shall be by 
personal delivery or by mail. Service 
by mail is deemed effected at the time 
of mailing to the last known address. 

§ 726.317 Discretionary review. 
(a) Following receipt of a timely pe-

tition for review, the Secretary shall 
determine whether the decision war-
rants review, and shall send a notice of 
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such determination to the parties and 
the Chief Administrative Law Judge. If 
the Secretary declines to review the 
decision, the Administrative Law 
Judge’s decision shall be considered the 
final decision of the agency. The Sec-
retary’s determination to review a de-
cision by an Administrative Law Judge 
under this subpart is solely within the 
discretion of the Secretary. 

(b) The Secretary’s notice shall 
specify: 

(1) The issue or issues to be reviewed; 
and 

(2) The schedule for submitting argu-
ments, in the form of briefs or such 
other pleadings as the Secretary deems 
appropriate. 

(c) Upon receipt of the Secretary’s 
notice, the Director shall forward the 
record to the Secretary. 

§ 726.318 Final decision of the Sec-
retary. 

The Secretary’s review shall be based 
upon the hearing record. The findings 
of fact in the decision under review 
shall be conclusive if supported by sub-
stantial evidence in the record as a 
whole. The Secretary’s review of con-
clusions of law shall be de novo. Upon 
review of the decision, the Secretary 
may affirm, reverse, modify, or vacate 
the decision, and may remand the case 
to the Office of Administrative Law 
Judges for further proceedings. The 
Secretary’s final decision shall be 
served upon all parties and the Chief 
Administrative Law Judge, in person 
or by mail to the last known address. 

§ 726.319 Retention of official record. 

The official record of every com-
pleted administrative hearing held pur-
suant to this part shall be maintained 
and filed under the custody and control 
of the Director. 

§ 726.320 Collection and recovery of 
penalty. 

(a) When the determination of the 
amount of any civil money penalty 
provided for in this part becomes final, 
in accordance with the administrative 
assessment thereof, or pursuant to the 
decision and order of an Administra-
tive Law Judge, or following the deci-
sion of the Secretary, the amount of 
the penalty as thus determined is im-
mediately due and payable to the U.S. 
Department of Labor on behalf of the 
Black Lung Disability Trust Fund. The 
person against whom such penalty has 
been assessed or imposed shall prompt-
ly remit the amount thereof, as finally 
determined, to the Secretary by cer-
tified check or by money order, made 
payable to the order of U.S. Depart-
ment of Labor, Black Lung Program. 
Such remittance shall be delivered or 
mailed to the Director. 

(b) If such remittance is not received 
within 30 days after it becomes due and 
payable, it may be recovered in a civil 
action brought by the Secretary in any 
court of competent jurisdiction, in 
which litigation the Secretary shall be 
represented by the Solicitor of Labor. 

VerDate Mar<15>2010 10:39 May 02, 2013 Jkt 229067 PO 00000 Frm 00382 Fmt 8010 Sfmt 8010 Y:\SGML\229067.XXX 229067w
re

ie
r-

av
ile

s 
on

 D
S

K
5T

P
T

V
N

1P
R

O
D

 w
ith

 C
F

R


		Superintendent of Documents
	2013-06-03T11:09:38-0400
	US GPO, Washington, DC 20401
	Superintendent of Documents
	GPO attests that this document has not been altered since it was disseminated by GPO




